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1001 I Street  Sacramento, California 95814  (916) 341-6000 

Mailing Address:  P. O. Box 4025,  Sacramento, CA 95812-4025
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February 10, 2003

To:

All Prospective Proposers

ADDENDUM- 01

To the Request for Proposals for

Conversion Technologies Life Cycle & Market Impact Assessment

IWM-C2030

1. A change is hereby made to Section IV, Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise and Small Business Participation Requirements, Sub-section B., Paragraph two.  Deletions are shown with strikeout and additions in bold as follows:

Attachment E must be completed and submitted with the IFB RFP package if the Bidder is a certified Small Business.  If the Bidder will use subcontractors to meet the above goal, all subcontractors must be listed on Attachment E.  Verification of a firm’s Small Business certification shall also be submitted.

2. A change is hereby made to Section V, Evaluation and Selection, Sub-section B, Paragraph four, Point 5.  Deletions are shown with strikeout and additions in bold as follows:

“….Administrative overhead or indirect costs in excess of 20% may be cause for rejection of the bid.”  

The CIWMB's original intent in including this phrase was to provide flexibility to ensure that sound proposals were not summarily rejected because indirect costs were over 20%.  However, potential bidders interpreted this in the opposite manner, i.e., that anything over 20% would be rejected.  As a result, the CIWMB has eliminated the phrase to make it clear that proposals will not be rejected for this reason.  The CIWMB also refers bidders to the Proposal Scoring Sheet (Attachment B), which includes a Budget/Cost criterion for reasonableness of proposed budget allocations.  

3. Attached to this Addendum 01, are the answers to questions submitted to the Board in writing by January 31, 2003 and responded to at the Proposers’ Tele-Conference on February 5, 2003.

4. Attached to this Addendum 01 is a listing of those individuals that participated in the Tele-Conference on February 5, 2003, submitted questions to the Board, and have signed up to be on the mailing list for this RFP.
All other terms, conditions, and instructions for the Request for Proposal remain the same.

Sincerely,

{Original Signed By}

Tiffany Donohue

Contract Analyst

Administrative Services Branch

Questions and Answers

Q1.
Is it required that a Small California-based company be part of the proposal?

A1.


The Governor has directed State of California agencies, boards, and departments to establish a 25% participation goal of contracting dollars be awarded to certified small businesses.  In response to this executive order, the Board expects that a percentage of the total contract amount will be contracted with a California certified small business.  Any business used to meet the small business requirements must be certified or have certification pending with the Department of General Services, Office of Small Business Certification and Resources.  This contract’s participation may apply to a combined effort of the contractor and any sub-contractors.  

Attachment E must be completed and submitted with the RFP package if the Bidder is a certified Small Business.  If the Bidder will use subcontractors to meet the above goal, all subcontractors must be listed on Attachment E.  Verification of a firm’s Small Business certification shall also be submitted.
Q2.
What is the role of the University of California in this proposal?  Do they have relevant data?  Do they have related data?

A2.
Assembly Bill 2770 requires that all reports on the activities to be conducted under this contract be peer reviewed, and the Board anticipates that the University of California will be serving in the role of peer reviewers.  The review will be performed under the auspices of an existing contract between the California Environmental Protection Agency (Cal/EPA) and the University of California, Office of the President.  Board staff will coordinate this peer review.


AB 2770 requires that the Board examine lifecycle environmental impacts and market impacts of conversion technologies, which is the subject of this RFP’s Scope of Work.  AB 2770 also requires the Board to define and describe different conversion technologies, and to describe and evaluate technical performance characteristics, feedstocks, emission, and residues used by each conversion technology, and to identify the cleanest, least polluting conversion technologies.  To meet this requirement, the Board will have a separate technology evaluation contract (as opposed to the peer review contract mentioned above) with the University of California at Riverside, in cooperation with the University of California at Davis, related to the identification and evaluation of conversion technology processes and products.  The investigators in this University of California technology evaluation contract may have or may obtain data that is relevant or related to the subject of this RFP’s Scope of Work, which focuses more on lifecycle modeling and market analytical efforts.  The Board acknowledges that these efforts may be interrelated and indeed anticipates that there may be synergistic opportunities between the two efforts.  The Board Contract Manager(s) for this lifecycle and market analysis contract and the University of California technology evaluation contract will facilitate communication and information exchange between the contracting parties.     

Q3.
Does the CIWMB have specific feedstock data for the conversion processes in the sites chosen?

A3.
Specific waste generation data is available in the Annual Reports submitted by local jurisdictions to the Board, which are available in hard copy at the Board.  However, as part of revising its work plan pursuant to Tasks II-1 and III-1, the Contractor will be required to come to agreement with the Contract Manager about the appropriate sets of hypothetical feedstocks that will be used in its lifecycle modeling and market analytical efforts, prior to conducting such efforts.  

Q4.
Is the study to consider a macro-view or micro-view of the sites chosen for the study?  Do we need MRF-site specific data or only regional-specific data?

A4.
The study should be conducted from a macro or regional perspective.

Q5.
What is the true period of performance?  It’s stated to be a twelve-month project, but the latest due dates are within 8 months.

A5.
The contract term is scheduled to last for twelve (12) months, with the major project tasks due as outlined in Section VII, Scope of Work.  Meeting these deadlines is critical, because the Board must provide its own report to the Legislature in April 2004.  In order to do so, staff must prepare a draft report for Board consideration in January 2004, which in turn will necessitate that the Contractor provide its draft reports in December 2003.  The 12-month term allows for subsequent finalization of the Contractor’s draft reports. 

Q6.
Why is it required that two analytical methods be used for Part III?  Is the idea here to have two different methods for doing the same thing?  Or is the idea that the contractor would outline two methods and the Board would pick one to go forward with?

A6.
The Board is not aware of a standard methodology to conduct the tasks in Part III and therefore desires flexibility in both bidders’ responses and in its ability to evaluate and select methodologies.  Once the Contractor is chosen and the contract awarded, the Board will work with the Contractor to select the final methodology based on comments from peer reviewers.

Q7.
Does the Board know of any companies that possess any of analytical methods as per Task III?  

A7.
No.  

Q8.
What specifically is and is not included in the 30-page limit?  The RfP states that personnel qualifications and samples of written work are not included.  What about title pages, required forms, letters of intent, and resumes?  

A8.
The 30-page limit is for the specific proposal and methodologies proposed; it does not include title pages, required forms, letters of intent, and resumes.

Q9.
In Task I-1, will the Board identify potential focus group participants and organize the meeting and provide a meeting space?  

A9.
Board staff can provide a list of potential participants but will rely on the Contractor to organize the meeting.  Board staff may be able to assist in obtaining a meeting space; for example, the Board can provide a hearing room at no charge if a meeting is held in Sacramento. 

Q10. 
In Task I-3, will the Board provide a place to hold the public workshops or should that be included as part of contractor tasks and budgets?  

A10.
The Board can provide a hearing room at no charge if the public workshop in Northern California is held in Sacramento.  The University of California at Riverside may have meeting space on its campus or facilities.  Board staff may be able to assist in obtaining other public meeting spaces in southern California.

Q11.
In Task I-4, will the Board identify peer reviewers and will they be compensated by the Board or the contractor for their time?  Will the peer review panel convene in a meeting or will the Board mail out the draft report and request written review comments?  If it’s a meeting will the Board be organizing the meeting and reimbursing peer reviewers for travel expenses?  

A11.
Peer reviewers will be identified and compensated under a separate contract that the California Environmental Protection Agency has with the University of California, Office of the President.  The Board will provide the Contractor draft reports to the peer reviewers with specific deadlines for when review comments are needed.


The selected Contractor will have nothing to do with the peer review other than providing the required draft reports and then working with the contract manager to address peer review comments.

Q12.
In Task II-3, the Board would like the contractor to assess public health impacts.  Is the Board interested in any specific health impacts and/or metrics for reporting health results?  Or is the Board interested in the contractor providing suggestions for impacts and metrics? 

A12.
The Board would like information on the specific impacts listed in Task II-3, as well as any other that the Contractor believes are important to include, with metrics reported in the appropriate units for those specific categories.  

The data from this task would subsequently be used by Cal/EPA’s Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) to conduct health risk assessments.  As a result, metrics should be appropriately reported so that OEHHA can accomplish this task.

Q13.
For Part III, does the Board possess any data that they are going to be sharing?  If not, what role will the Board play in helping the contractor acquire data?

A13.
The Board does not have relevant data from previously published studies.  Depending on the methodology adopted by the Contractor and the Board, Board staff may be able to assist the Contractor in making appropriate contacts.  However, Board staff will not assist in actual collection of data. 
Transcript of Discussions

Tele-Conference on 

February 5, 2003

We will go ahead and begin with the teleconference.  Today we have representing our program staff, Howard Levenson and Fernando Berton. They will be answering the program specific questions that you have relating to this request for proposal.  My name is Tiffany Donohue, I am the Conference Leader and I’ll be assisting with any administrative type questions you may have, I also have my co-workers from the contracts staff, Susan Chow and Jennifer Burnett here to assist with other issues.  So with that we will go ahead and begin with the questions.

Q1. 
Tiffany you have all of our questions. Do you want us to run through them or how is this call intended to work?
A1.
Please just go ahead and ask any particular questions that you might wish to discuss with us today whether or not those were already submitted in writing and we can go ahead and address some of those.

Q2.
 
So will you begin to address the ones that you have in writing initially?
A2.
No, the written questions are going to be addressed in an addendum to be released later this week or early Monday.  If there are particular questions that you have already submitted in writing that you would like to discuss today we can go ahead and do that but we are going to wait for you to ask the specific questions that you are here to discuss with us. So if you have questions that you have already submitted that you would like to discuss please go ahead and ask those.

Q3.

It wasn’t clear to me what was the assumed feedstock to facilities except in the case where it was specifically listed as un-recyclable plastic resin?
A3.
This is Fernando Berton, we didn’t list any specific feedstock because our thought was that in the proposal the contractor that was selected or in the proposals we would look or they would include some feedstock to look at, given the type of technologies that are available.   There is some specific waste generation data in annual reports that proposers could look at, however, we anticipate that the contractor would work with the contract manager to identify, characterize and use appropriate hypothetical feedstock compositions.

Q4.

What’s the role of the University of California in this proposal?  You mentioned them in the proposal.  You talk about that there may be existing data that we can use.  What is their role specifically?
A4.
 University of California will have – their activities will be more of a peer review function.  Assembly Bill 2770, the bill that requires all this work to be done, requires that all reports be peer reviewed and the Board anticipates actually using the University of California in that peer review function.  It would be done under an existing contract between Cal/EPA and the University Office of the President and Board staff here would actually coordinate that peer review.  We will have a separate contract with University of California, Riverside in cooperation with University of California, Davis related to the identification and evaluation of conversion technology processes and products.  The investigators in that particular contract may have or may obtain data that is relevant or related to this particular – to the life cycle contract.

Q5.

But that’s a separate contract?

A5.

That’s correct.

Q6.

Is that tied into this contract?
A6.

The scope of work for that contract is being considered by the Board at it’s February 11th meeting and that is available on our electronic Board Agenda system.  We anticipate that those investigators may obtain or may have data and that would be relevant to this particular contract.  That is the focus of this meeting and we would coordinate meetings and exchange information between the selected contractor for this contract and the University of California.

Q7.

And what kind of data is that, that would be available, what type of data?

A7.
We don’t know yet because we haven’t entered into that agreement.  The scope of work for that particular agreement asks the University to identify the range; identify and characterize the range of different technologies that are available around the world that might relate to conversion technologies in California; to gather cost information; gather existing information, if there is any on emissions, on performance characteristics, data such as that, but we don’t have that data at this time

Q8.

So, these universities do have that data or that would be part of the contract for them to go out and get that data?
A8.

Yes to the extent they can.

Q9.

I have some questions about the economic and financial impact area.

It seems to me that depending on the feedstock, that the markets that these types of new facilities might impact would be more of the landfill markets rather than the recycling markets.  For instance, if the facility is taking in mixed solid waste, then it’s true competitor in the market place would be the landfill, as opposed to the recycling market.  But, I’ve noticed that much of the proposal or much of the RFP seems to be written to ask for the impacts on the recycling markets but I imagine that you’d want to know both--that you really want to know how these facilities will effect the entire market place?

A9.
 Let me respond to that by citing AB 2770, which specifically asks us to evaluate the impacts of conversion technologies on composting and recycling market.  So that’s our primary need in being responsive to the legislation.  We would certainly not limit analysis to those if there are sufficient resources and ability to go beyond that.

Q10.
The question regards to the period of performance--It’s stated to be a 12 month project but I think the latest few dates are within 8 months, how is that configured?

A10.

Ok, actually the final, the latest due date is early 2004 for the final report but let me explain our timeline because it will impact the timeline for deliverables under this contract.  We are required to provide a report to the legislature in April 2004 and in order to prepare that report and get the necessary approvals from our Board, Cal/EPA and the governor’s office, we will have to bring a draft report, a draft report that staff will prepare, to our Board in January of 2004.  So, in order for us to be able to prepare that draft report we at least need a draft by December 1, 2003 from this contract.  So that’s the reason why most of the deliverables are in that late 2003 or earlier timeframe but the contract does extend into or will extend to for a year to allow sufficient time to finalize the contract reports and just take care of any other details that arise.   The critical timeframes for us really are October November December kind of deliverables.  Excuse me, I shouldn’t have said October but the November, the deliverables.  They are all December 1st,  I’m sorry, the various draft reports that are due.

Q11.
I have a question also. The written questions will be answered, the questions let’s say that we submitted will those only be answered for us specifically?  Or all of the questions that everyone submitted will be available to everybody?

A11.
All questions and answers that are either in written form or verbal form will be available to everybody.  We will post this out on our Board website for any interested parties to view, so it’s for everybody.

Q12.
 And when will that be posted probably?

A12.
I believe Friday, at the latest on Monday it’ll be posted.  As long as you are on our electronic mailing list I will be sending out a notification to you to let you know exactly when it is posted and that you can download the information. 

Q13.
I’d like to ask a question with regard to some of the text on Page 17 under selection and evaluation. Under B selection process, Item #5 there’s a parenthetical remark that said administrative overhead or indirect cost in excess of 20% may be cause of rejection of the bid.  Could somebody from contracts explain what’s the cost categories might be referred to here and also whether or not the Board or the staff or contracts can give us a reading if bids are going to be rejected or not?

A13.
Actually we’ll have to discuss that between contract and program staff after the teleconference and we’ll make that information available in the written document.  That’s something we will need to talk about.  

Clarification:  Based upon the discussion below for Questions 13-17 and staff’s subsequent deliberation, please delete the remark on page 17 that administrative overhead or indirect costs in excess of 20% may be cause for rejection.  Staff will assess the reasonableness of proposed budget allocations only as part of the scoring process (attachment B).

Q14.
Will you make it clear whether or not there will be any rejection or is that one of the items under discussion?

A14.
We’ll discuss whether or not that is appropriate language and if it is we will clarify exactly how that will be handled.

Q15.
I had a related question actually that was one of my questions as well.  On the form budget expenditure by category because they say that consultants usually put together budgets because we usually build everything into our billing rate structure.  It wasn’t clear to me what items would be allowable in  each of the various categories listed on the budget expenditure sheet.  If it was simply the absolute direct cost related to the contract it probably wouldn’t be financially viable for most consultants.

A15.
We will also address that in the written document.  That’s another thing that we will need to discuss.

Question to Caller:
Can I just get a bit of clarification on that question?  Are you asking whether indirect costs can also be included in those particular line items or more specificity on what direct costs can be included?

Caller Response:
What direct cost can be included would be most helpful because I’m not sure how you would define all these categories versus how I might define them like contractual #8.  I don’t know how you all are defining that and the other thing too is that usually the way we bill is per hours worked on the project and only certain percentage of our hours over the course of the year are actually billable hours.  If we were only billing our direct salaries as I might interpret this page to mean, that’s all we can do then obviously we will never even cover our overhead costs.  Our overhead cost for any consulting firm are definitely an excess of 20% because of the fact that so much of our work is not billable.

Question to Caller:
Had you looked at attachment A2 the budget expenditure by category?
Caller Response: I believe that is the one I am looking at.  That is the one I am specifically asking questions about.  The one that says: 1 salaries, 2 benefits, 3 travel, etc., because usually what we do is we put in our billing rate instead of having salaries and benefits, we would just have the number of hours worked on our contract and have our billing rate and that covers all our un-billable time.   I’m not describing anything magic or different about our firm, it’s just an industry standard for the way the consultant generally puts together a project budget. 

Question to Caller:
So what your saying is for your billing rates you include salary, benefits?

Response: Exactly

Question to Caller:  Ok, now do you break out the separate pieces? Like the travel and……..

Caller Response: Yes, Yes, Travel and any kind of out of pocket expenses, we break out those out separately.

Caller Response No. 2:One of the confusing issues on the cost reporting form is you have a separate category for indirect and you have other categories that can be taken to be included in indirect.  So, if this form is to be used, especially by consulting firms, somebody has to be very specific as to what are the indirect categories.  I can be specific just so that we are not dealing with things that are too abstract.  Most consulting companies would include benefits under indirect expenses.

Q16.
I had a question about the 10% withholding portion also.  It talks about it being a 10% withholding per task but then it also says that the withheld payment will be included in the final payment.  So, given that this is an $850,000 potential contract, I don’t know if I should read that to mean that some tasks will be signed off on as complete and the withheld portion will be paid at that point or does that mean a total of potentially $85,000 will be withheld until the full 12 month period?

A16.
My understanding from our fiscal office is that the 10% is withheld from each task.  And then is payable at the conclusion of contract which would result in the $85,000 amount.  I will verify that with our fiscal office that is indeed how it works and address that in the written document.


The answer to this question was verified and is correctly stated in A16. above.

Question to Caller: To go back to your question about indirect cost and how that would be captured, Jennifer Burnett of the contracts office was curious if we added a category on the proposal sheet that was just addressed as profit, if that will be able to capture the information for you and for our purposes?

Caller Response:  I don’t think so; I mean that’s just a small piece of what’s missing from this form.

Question to Callers:  We just want to verify with you and the other gentleman who had the question on the indirect is the issue, that as the State of California, we have a different understating as what indirect might entail versus the consulting community.  Is that what you are trying to say?

Caller Response: Yes, there are a couple of different things we would need to make sure we cover all of our cost. It’s a matter of style that the way you’re asking for information is different than the way that we usually provide, very different than the way we bill.  There are lots of things that go on within a consulting firm that aren’t billed directly because everything is billed into the consultant billing rate.

Question to Caller: So for the purposes of completing this document would you be able to break out your billing rates using these different categories?

Caller Response: Yeah, we would have to do things in a whole different way and so that’s why we would need a definition what’s in each of these categories that we make sure we do it the right way.

Question to Caller:
Ok, and so the definitions on attachment A2 do not provide enough information to help you complete that document?

Caller Response:
I think it was, I think there is just some room for interpretation in some of them like the question that was answered earlier about indirect usually does include benefits

Q17.
Can I make a suggestion?

A17.
Sure

Statement from Caller: There is a federal form called an OP 60. At least there used to be.  That is one way of providing cost estimates in at least a federal government approved way, which breaks out overhead and fee and direct labor.  Just to give you some guidance, at least we are familiar with filling out that kind of form but I think that the ---- of the matter at least for our company that if in fact there is going to be a limit on overhead. It has to be clearly spelled out what the categories of overhead are and what the limit is going to be, because like Susan has said, if it’s really 20%, the competition is going to be limited.  I would expect even a university would have trouble meeting that so the -----of the matter to some of the proposers is we don’t want to be run the risk of preparing what’s going to be a comprehensive proposal and then find out that is going to be rejected out of hand you know some months later.  We’d rather know that upfront and make the decision as to whether or not first of all we can meet the overhead level and second whether or not we want to run the risk of submitting a proposal if it’s not clear whether if it’s going to be rejected.

Question to Caller:
So for purposes of this RFP-- if your indirect or overhead rate would include benefits, would it not be feasible for you to break that portion out and note it on the sheet and then wouldn’t that help bring down the cost to help you meet that level for the indirect?

Response:
We can fill out the sheet. I doubt that most engineering companies even if you break out benefits separately are going to be able to meet 20% limitation.

Statement to Caller: Ok, we just wanted to get a clear understanding of what your position was.

Statement from Caller:
That’s why at least we have raised the issue.  It’s because it looks like there’s a cost component of scoring that depends on the price and if you’ve got a high overhead you’re going to get a lower score than someone who has a lower overhead.  So, at least in one point in the evaluation it appears to us to be accounted for.

Question to Caller:
I still would like further discussion on what you view, other than the benefits, what you view as indirect cost that are not included in the form A2?

Response:
I am not exactly sure where I would put any of the cost related to the, well I guess it all goes into indirect overhead, we don’t usually break out the cost for all our accounting and human resources personnel.  Those are covered in our billing rate.  So, I guess we’ll have to figure out what portion of the time is spent on this project, for example, and include that in our overhead amount.

Question to Caller:
Would that not be more appropriate under point 8 services, I mean point 6 services?

Response:
Oh, see that’s something that I interpreted to mean services that we would be getting directly. I saw it as an out of pocket services thing, so I’m glad you said that.

Question to Callers: You know, and part of the issue I think that you might be having with the indirect, is the statement in section 5 that if it’s in excess of 20% that the bid might be rejected, is that the case?

Response: Yes. I’ll give an example.  With the standard industry for consulting generally billing                     rates are 3-4 times the person’s salary.  An individual’s consultant billing rate would be, their hourly rate would be 3-4 times their hourly salary that gives you an idea of the scale of other things that are included with that billing rate/ It’s not just that person’s salary and benefits, it’s all of the things that are needed to make the firm run it includes the rental of office space etc 

Statement to Callers: Let me try to take a stab at helping out on this, this is Howard and I may have to revise this answer after we talk about it further.  In some previous contracts we had a phrase in there that the bids shall be rejected if overhead was over 20% and we felt that it was unreasonable, it didn’t allow us any flexibility.  So, actually what we’re trying to do is, obviously the state wishes to minimize expenses, so we do want to keep overhead and indirect costs down as much as possible.  But, we want some flexibility to be able to allow reasonable budget proposals to be considered.  And in the scoring sheet on page, attachment B, there’s a category of reasonableness of proposed budget allocations that accounts for 20 points.  Although, I understand your concern, we’re trying to be flexible here in approaching this situation as program staff.  I think what we’ll consider is, in the next day or so, is whether or not that statement should just be deleted or not.

Response:
Ok, thank you very much for considering this



See clarification under Question 13.

Question to Callers: Ok, are there any other questions?

Q18.  
Could I just ask who the program folks are on the phone, I think I got all the contract people but in terms I think you said program reps. I heard the name Fernando Berton and I think there was another gentleman, maybe Howard who was speaking?

A18.
Yes, Howard Levenson

Q19.
Also will you be releasing a list of the names and contact information of the people who participated in this call?

A19.
We’ll be releasing that information, as well as, a listing of all of the interested firms for this particular RFP.

Q20.
So others may submit a proposal if they did not participate in this call?

A20.
Right.  Participation in this conference was not a requirement to responding to the RFP.

Statement from Caller: You know, one suggestion that I might make is that maybe for the next time--is potentially that what you can do is that is, first of all to answer the questions in writing and then follow that up with a teleconference to clarify any doubts there might be in those questions.  That way we would really be asking questions that are most interest in terms of clarification

Response: That’s a good suggestion that we’ll consider, thank you.

Q21.
After we receive the responses, both to questions raised in the conference call, as well as the earlier written ones--Is there going to be a vehicle to get further clarification or not? If it’s required?

A21.
Typically that would conclude the questions and answer period and it’s from that point that the firms would use the information that we provided you with to draft a response to the RFP.  So, we will not be having any further chance for a question session.

Statement to Callers: Ok, if there are no further questions then we will go ahead and conclude the conference. And again we’ll be releasing information on Friday

Q22.
And you will provide that via e-mail?
A22.
Yes and it’ll also be posted on our Board’s website.
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		Lastname		Firstname		Company		Address		City		State		Zip		E-Mail

		Ashworth		John		National Renewable Energy Laboratory		1617 Cole Blvd., MS3511		Golden		CA		80401		john_ashworth@nrel.gov

		Blankinship		Michael J.		Blankinship & Associates		2940 Spafford St., Ste. 110		Davis		CA		94616		blankinship@envtox.com

		Boisson		Edward		Boisson & Associates		P.O. Box 50		San Geronimo		CA		94963		eboisson@att.net

		Boretz		Mitch		CE-CERT, UC Riverside		1084 Columbia Ave.		Riverside		CA		92507		mitch@cert.ucr.edu

		Broten		Scott		ICF Consulting		2500 Michelson Dr., Ste. 110		Irvine		CA		92612		sbroten@icfconsulting.com

		Browning		Louis		ICF Consulting		P.O. Box 1678		Aptos		CA		95001		lbrowning@icfconsulting.com

		Butner		Scott		Pacific NW National Laboratory		P.O. Box 999		Richland		WA		99352		scott.butner@pnl.gov

		Casias		Richard		RCC Group, LLC		417 Mace Blvd., Suite J-284		Davis		CA		95616		rccgroup@earthlink.net

		Collins*		Susan V.		Hilton Farnkoph & Hobson		3990 Westerly Place, Ste. 195		Newport Beach		CA		92660		SVCtrash@aol.com

		Cuthbert		Richard		R.W. Beck				Seattle		WA				rcuthbert@rwbeck.com

		Frische		James				555 Capitol Mall, Ste. 650		Sacramento		CA		95814		james.frische@ey.com

		Glasscock		Shannon				3281 Woodleigh Ln.		Cameron Park		CA		95682		shannon.glasscock@eds.com

		Gloria		Thomas		ICF Consulting		33 Hayden Avenue		Lexington		MA		2421		tgloria@icfconsulting.com

		Greene		Michael J.		CDS Consulting		3701 McKinley Blvd.		Sacramento		CA		95816		cdsconsulting

		Henry		Cheryl		CalRecovery, Inc.		2454 Stanwell Dr.		Concord		CA		94520		chenry@calrecovery.com

		Hutson		Donald H.		Jack Faucett Associates, Inc.		4550 Montgomery Ave, Ste. #300N		Bethesda		MD		20814		hutson@faucett.com

		Jenkins		Bryan		University of California Dept. Bio Agr Engr		1 Shields Avenue		Davis		CA		95616		bmjenkins@ucdavis.edu

		Judd		Richard		Judd Associates		7780 Crystal Blvd.		El Dorado		CA		95623		rjudd@innercite.com

		Krigmont		Dr. Henry V., QEP		Allied Environmental Technologies, Inc.		15182 Bolsa Chica Rd., Ste. D		Huntington

		Landberg		Trace		Environmental Compliance Options		4603 Foothill Drive		Shingle Springs		CA		95682		tracelandberg@yahool.com

		Larson		George H.		Plastic Energy, LLC		455 Blackwood Street		Sacramento		CA		95815		larson1996@aol.com

		Leonard		Michelle		SCS Engineers		3711 Long Beach Blvd., 9th Fl.		Long Beach		CA		90807		mleonard@scsengineers.com

		Little		Arthur D.				68 Fargo Street		Boston		MA		2210		martyn.roetter@adl.com

		McElvaney		James		BioConverter Park LLC		528 Arizona Avenue Suite #209		Santa Monica		CA		90401		jmcelvaney@earthlink.net

		Merolla		Diane		Booz Allen Hamilton										communications@bah.com

		Mew		Binks		RTI Internaional		3040 Cornwallis Road				NC		27709		binks@rti.org

		Moua		Ge		Venture Lab		129 J Street		Sacramento		CA		95814		moua@venture-lab.com

		Musgrove		Daniel		Universal Entech, LLC.		5501 N. 7th Ave., PMB 233		Phoenix		AZ		85013		dmusgrove@earthlink.net

		Nieves*		Rafael		National Renewable Energy Laboratory		1617 Cole Blvd.		Golden		CO		80401		rafael_nieves@nrel.gov

		O'Connell		Carrol		PRI Consulting		2550 Appian Way #209		Pinole		CA		94564		coconnellpri@aol.com

		Saaty		Kathlen		TechnikonLLC		5301 Price Ave.		McClellan		CA		95652		ksaaty@technikonllc.com

		Savage*		George		CalRecovery, Inc.		2454 Stanwell Dr.		Concord		ca		94520		Gsavage@calrecovery.com

		Schuetzle		Dr. Dennis		TechnikonLLC		5301 Price Ave.		McClellan		CA		95652		dennis@cerp.us

		Sones		Drew		R.W. Beck		6528 Greenleaf Ave. Ste. 112		Whittier		CA		90601		dsones@rwbeck.com

		Stein		David A.		URS Corporation		500 12th Street		Oakland		CA		94607		david_stein@urs.corp

		Stevens, Pres.		John		Wood Waste Diversion, Inc.		230 Sinex Ave.		Pacific Grove		CA		93950		jbsfortord@aol.com

		Taylor		Donald		Taylor Energy, LLC		46 Oakhurst		Irvine		CA		92620		taylorenergy@yahoo.com

		Thompsen		Keith D., PE, DEE		BioContractors, Inc.		20136 State Road		Cerritos		CA		90703		kthomsen@dslextreme.com

		Villaflores		J.		PS Enterprises		3350 Ocean Park Blvd., Ste. 205		Santa Monica		CA		90405		j_villaflores@psenterprises.com

		Weitz*		Keith		Research Triangle Park		3040 Cornwallis Road				NC		27709		kaw@rti.org

		Yorzyk		Jeff		Wendell Rahorst, Inc.		2120 Lookout Mtn. Rd.		Golden		CA		80401		yorzyk@attbi.com

						Franklin Associates, Ltd.		4121 W. 83rd Street, Ste. 108		Prairie Village		KS		66208		llucas@fal.com

		*Participated in Tele-conference on 2/5/03
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